

Multivariate Analysis in Bread Wheat (*Triticum aestivum* L.) for Yield and Yield Contributing Traits

ABSTRACT

The present investigation was conducted to examine the 20 Bread Wheat genotypes to study the genetic parameters, correlation and genetic diversity. The experiment was carried out in main experimental station of Agricultural Research Farm, Rama University (U.P), Mandhana, Kanpur during Rabi Season, 2020-21 in Randomized Block Design (RBD) with three replications. Analysis of variance showed highly significant differences among 20 Bread Wheat for 11 characters studied. Genetic divergence was estimated among 20 genotypes by using Mahalanobis's D^2 statistic. The genotypes were grouped into 5 clusters. Cluster 1 comprises maximum genotypes which is 15 in numbers namely (HPST-16-17-07, BHU 25, BHU 31, ZINCO1, ANKUR, PBW Zn 1, WB 02, HPAN 101, HPAN 147, HPAN 164, HPAN 57, HPAN 65, HPAN 111, HPAN 127, HD 2967) followed by cluster 2 comprises 1 genotypes ((HPAN 42), cluster 3 comprises 1 genotype (HPST 16 -17-15), cluster 4 comprises 2 genotype (HPST 16-17-16, CRD GHEHU 1), cluster 5 comprises 1 genotype (PBW 677). The maximum Intra-cluster (D^2) was registered for cluster 1 (7.93). Inter-cluster distance (D^2) was found maximum between cluster 4 and cluster 5. Cluster 4 showed maximum cluster mean value for grain yield per plant. Cluster means indicated that none of the clusters was superior for all the characters studied. Therefore, hybridization between genotypes belonging to different clusters is suggested for development of superior genotypes. Thousand seed weight was the main factor contributing towards genetic diversity accounting for (26.32%) followed by grain per spikelets (25.79%).

Key words: Bread wheat, genetic parameters, correlation, genetic diversity and cluster.

Comment [A1]: The results of analysis of variance are not presented

[1] Introduction

Wheat (*Triticum aestivum* L.) is considered as king of cereals and contributing more than 30% of food basket of the country. Wheat is one of the most important and widely cultivated crops in the world, used mainly for human consumption and support nearly 40% of the world population (Mohammadi-jooet *al.*, 2015) and providing 20 per cent of the total food calories. Wheat is the major staple food crop, providing almost half of all calories in the region of North Africa and West and Central Asia. Bread wheat, (*Triticumaestivum*L.), is allohexaploid annual grass with chromosome number $2n=6X=42$ and possess three genomes A, B, and D. Genome 'A' is derived from oinkorn wheat (*Triticumurartu*), 'B' from *A. Speltoides* and genome 'D' belong to a weedy

grass *A. tauschii*(Rajput., 2018). It is predominantly a self-pollinated crop but cross pollination up to 1 % is also possible. Globally, bread wheat covers 90 per cent of the area followed macaroni wheat with 9 per cent and emmer wheat and einkorn wheat with one per cent of the total area. In world, wheat occupies an area of 216 M ha with total production of 730.65 MT and productivity of 3390 kg ha (Anon, 2019).

The genetic divergence analysis using techniques hierarchical euclidean cluster analysis, classify the genotypes into homogenous groups/clusters with similarity of genotypes for different characters within clusters while genotypes between two clusters are more divergent than the genotypes of the same clusters. Thus, suitable genotypes from diverse cluster can be used for further planning of a successful breeding programme.

[2] Materials and Methods

The present investigation entitled “Study of screening for tolerance to terminal heat stress in bread wheat (*Triticum aestivum* L. em. Thell)” was carried out during Rabi 2020-21 at Agricultural Research Farm, Rama University, Kanpur (U.P.).

The experimental material comprised of 20 bread wheat genotypes were evaluated in Randomized Block Design (RBD), with 3 Replications. The observations were recorded on 5 randomly selective competitive plants for each genotype for plant height, effective tiller per plant, spikelet's per spike, spike length, grain per spike, 1000 seed weight, days to maturity, days to 50% flowering, biological yield per plant, harvest index, grain yield per plant observations were recorded on whole plot basis. The data so, obtained were subjected to analysis of variance, estimate the magnitude of genetic variability, heritability and genetic advance, correlation coefficient and genetic divergence.

[3] Results and Discussion

[3.1] Genetic divergence analysis

The mean, range and mean sum of squares due to genotypes for all the traits studied were highly significant. Thereby, revealing sufficient amount of genetic variation among the genotype for all the characters studied but the extent of genetic diversity present among the genotypes taken for the investigation could not be explained. To overcome this problem and to quantify genetic divergence between any two genotype or group of genotype, Euclidean clustering analysis was employed and the constellation of genotype into cluster was done. D2 statistics measures the

Comment [A2]: The introduction is very short. Explain more about the experimental factor and other researchers' results. New references added (2015-2022)

Comment [A3]: At the end of the introduction, the objectives of the research should be clearly stated

Comment [A4]: Introduce the origin of genotypes.
Present the results of soil analysis.
How to measure attributes by inserting a reference
Introduce the software used

Comment [A5]: Present the results of analysis of variance of traits.
Provide mean comparison results.

Comment [A6]: No discussion provided.
Provide scientific reasons for each result
.Consistent with other researchers' results.
Report other tests. Use new references

Comment [A7]: genotypes

degree of divergence and determines the relative proportion of each component traits to the total divergence. It measures the forces of differentiation at two levels that is Intra cluster and Inter cluster levels.

Comment [A8]: It is better to use stepwise regression of traits instead of this part

[3.2] Clustering procedure

In the present study, 20 genotypes were grouped into 5 clusters by TOCHER METHOD. Cluster 1 comprises maximum genotypes which is 15 in numbers namely (HPST-16-17-07, BHU 25, BHU 31, ZINCO1, ANKUR, PBW Zn 1, WB 02, HPAN 101, HPAN 147, HPAN 164, HPAN 57, HPAN 65, HPAN 111, HPAN 127, HD 2967) followed by cluster 2(HPAN 42), cluster 3 (HPST 16-17-15), cluster 4 (HPST 16-17-16, CRD GHEHU 1) and cluster 5 (PBW 677).

Comment [A9]: A discussion should be presented. According to the description provided

Table 1. Cluster distance

Cluster	I	II	III	IV	V
I	7.93	9.43	10.28	13.38	14.08
II		0.00	9.39	15.46	12.89
III			0.00	12.02	19.02
IV				7.17	23.25
V					0.00

[3.3] Intraand inter cluster average distance

The maximum Intra-cluster (D^2) was registered for cluster 1 (**7.93**) followed by cluster 4 (**7.17**). Cluster 3,4,5,6 does not possess any intra cluster relationship.

Inter-cluster distance (D^2) was found maximum between cluster 4 and cluster 5 (23.25) followed by cluster 3 and cluster 5 (19.02), cluster 2 and cluster 4 (15.46), cluster 1 and cluster 5 (14.08), cluster 1 and cluster 4 (13.38), cluster 3 and cluster 4 (12.02), cluster 1 and cluster 3 (10.28). The minimum Inter-cluster distance was found between cluster 1 and cluster 2 (9.43) followed by cluster 2 and cluster 3 (9.39).

Comment [A10]: Explain more. The meaning of the results should be clear

[3.1] CLUSTER MEAN VALUE

A comparison of the mean values of 11 characters of 5 different clusters was presented in (Table 1) and considerable difference in cluster mean was evident for all characters.

Comment [A11]: This explanation is not enough. Explain and discuss each adjective separately

Table 2. Cluster mean value of wheat genotypes

Cluster/Traits	DFE	DM	PH	ETP	SL	SPS	GPS	HI	TSW	BYP	GYP
----------------	-----	----	----	-----	----	-----	-----	----	-----	-----	-----

I	78.13	117.63	92.83	5.17	12.80	19.87	48.73	22.52	40.90	1402.33	309.00
II	76.00	122.50	87.50	6.00	11.50	18.00	49.50	26.94	38.29	1400.00	345.00
III	76.50	116.50	100.00	5.00	12.50	21.00	42.00	25.30	38.05	1700.00	390.00
IV	76.25	111.50	88.75	5.50	14.00	23.00	39.25	31.13	40.31	1675.00	485.00
V	81.00	120.00	100.00	5.50	11.50	18.00	45.00	28.42	37.14	1375.00	400.00

CLUSTER I

Cluster 1 comprises of 15 genotypes (HPST-16-17-07, BHU 25, BHU 31, ZINCO1, ANKUR, PBW Zn 1, WB 02, HPAN 101, HPAN 147, HPAN 164, HPAN 57, HPAN 65, HPAN 111, HPAN 127, HD 2967) and registered maximum mean value for the character Biological yield per plant (1402.33) and minimum for Effective tiller per plant (5.17) and rest of the characters lies between them Grain yield per plant have mean value of (309.00), followed by days to maturity, plant height, days of 50% flowering, grain per spike, thousand seed weight, harvest index, spikelet's per spike, spike length.

CLUSTER II

Cluster 2 comprises of one genotype (HPAN 42) and registered maximum mean value for the character biological yield per plant and minimum for effective tiller per plant and rest of the characters lies between them grain yield per plant have mean value of followed by days to maturity, plant height, days of 50% flowering, grain per spike, thousand seed weight, harvest index, spikelet's per spike, spike length.

CLUSTER III

Cluster 3 comprises of only one genotype and registered maximum mean value for the character biological yield per plant and minimum for effective tiller per plant and rest of the characters lies between them grain yield per plant have mean value of followed by days to maturity, plant height, days to 50% flowering, grain per spike, thousand seed weight, harvest index, spikelet's per spike, spike length.

CLUSTER IV

Cluster 4 comprises of only two genotypes (HPST 16-17-16, CRD GHEHU 1) and registered maximum mean value for the character biological yield per plant and minimum for effective tiller per plant and rest of the characters lies between them grain yield per plant have mean value of followed by days to maturity, plant height, days to 50% flowering, grain per spike, thousand seed weight, harvest index, spikelet's per spike, spike length.

CLUSTER V

Comment [A12]: Scientific reasons should be stated Consistent with the results of other researchers

Cluster V comprises of only one genotype (PBW 677) and registered maximum mean value for the character biological yield per plant and minimum for effective tiller per plant and rest of the characters lies between them grain yield per plant have mean value of followed by days to maturity, plant height, days to 50% flowering, grain per spike, thousand seed weight, harvest index, spikelet's per spike, spike length. Hailegiorgis *et al.* (2011), Degewione *et al.* (2013), Ahmad *et al.* (2018) also agreed with the similar findings.

Table 3: PERCENT CONTRIBUTION OF CHARACTER

S.No.	Source	Times Ranked 1 st	Contribution%
1.	Days to 50% flowering	18	9.47%
2.	Days to maturity	0	0.00%
3.	Plant height	3	1.58%
4.	Effective tillers per plant	4	2.11%
5.	Spike length	1	0.53%
6.	Spikelet's per spike	0	0.00%
7.	Grains per spike	49	25.79%
8.	Harvest index	10	5.26%
9.	Test seed weight	50	26.32%
10.	Biological yield per plant	10	5.26%
11.	Gain yield per plant	45	23.68%

[3.4] Percent contribution

Percent contribution of 11 characters to total genetic diversity is presented in table 3. It was revealed that thousand seed weight was the main factor contributing to divergence accounting for followed by grain per spike, grain yield per plant, days to 50% flowering, biological yield per plant and harvest index, effective tiller per plant, plant height and spike length. Days to maturity and spikelet's per spike had no contribution toward genetic divergence.

Comment [A13]: Discuss further

[4] CONCLUSION

Based on the results, it is concluded that HPST-16-17-16 genotype showed high mean performance for grain yield per plant. The characters days to maturity, days to 50% flowering, plant height, grain per spike, spikelets per spike should be given priority during selection.

Hybridization between the genotypes with high mean performance for multiple characters from cluster 5, 4 and 3 is suggested to get heterotic segregates to enhance grain yield.

[5] References

- Ahmad, M. Q., Hassan, M., Qayyum, A., Salem, M. A., Malik, W., Noor, E., & Ul-Allah, S. (2019). characterization of synthetic wheat germplasm using morphological and molecular markers. *International journal of agriculture and biology*, 22(1), 131-138.
- Ajmal, S. U., Nahid, Z., Muhammad Y. M., (2009). Estimation of Genetic Parameters and Character Association in Wheat. *J. Agric. Biol. Sci.* 1(1):15-18.
- Alamerew, S., Chebotar, S., Huang, X., Roeder, M. and Boemer, A., (2004). Genetic diversity in Ethiopian hexaploid and tetraploid wheat germplasm assessed by microsatellite markers. *Genetic resources and crop evaluation*, Germany, 51
- FEDERER, W. T., 1956. Augmented Designs. *Hawain Planters Record*, 40: 191-207.
- Al-Ashkar, Ibrahim & Alderfasi, Ali & Romdhane, Walid & Seleiman, Mahmoud & El-Said, Rania & Al-Doss, Abdullah. (2020). Morphological and Genetic Diversity within Salt Tolerance Detection in Eighteen Wheat Genotypes. *Plants*. 9. 287. 10.3390/plants9030287.
- Breiman A, Graur B (1995). Wheat Evolution. *Israel J. Plant Sci.* 43:85-98.
- Briggle, L.W., (1980). Origin and botany of wheat. In E. Hafliger, ed. Wheat document.
- Burton, G.W. and Devane (1953). Estimating heritability in tall Fescue from replicated clonal material. *Agron. J.*, (45): 474-481.
- Chaitali, S. and Bini, T., (2007) Variability, character association and component analysis in wheat (*T. aestivum* L.) *Crop Research*, (Hissar). 34 (1-3): 166-170.
- Chaitali, S. and Bini, T., (2007). Variability, character association and Path analysis 166-170.

Comment [A14]: New references added in this section
References are in accordance with the journal format.

Chao, S., Zhang, W., Dubcovsky, J., & Sorrells, M. (2007). Evaluation of genetic diversity and genome-wide linkage disequilibrium among U.S. wheat (*Triticumaestivum* L.)

Comment [A15]: The name of the genus and species should be italic in the whole text

Farshadfar E, Estehghari M.R, (2014). Estimation of genetic architecture for agromorphological characters in common wheat. *International Journal of Biosciences*, vol. 5 no 6 pp 140-147.

Felipe de Mendiburu (2020). *Agricolae: Statistical Procedures for Agricultural Research*. R package version 1.3-3. <https://CRAN.R-project.org/package=agricolae>

Fellahi, Z.1, Hannachi, A.1, Bouzerzour, H.2 and Boutekrabt, A.3 (2015). Correlation between Traits and Path Analysis Coefficient for Grain Yield and Other Quantitative Traits in Bread Wheat under Semi-Arid Conditions. *Journal of Agriculture and Sustainability* ISSN 220s1-4357 Volume 3, Number 1, 2013, 16-26.

Figliuolo, G. and Ferrino, P., (2004). Genetic diversity and intra-specific phylogeny of *Triticumturgidum* L. subsp. *dicoccom*Thell. revealed by RFLPs and SSRs. *Genetic- Resources and Crop Evolution*, Italy, 51 (5): 519-527.

Frankel, O.H., (1967). Genetic dangers in green revolution. *World Agric.*, 19: 9-15.

Gite, V.D. & Bankar, Deepak & Kj, Yashavantha & Baviskar, Dr. Vijendra & Bk, Honrao & Am, Chavan & Surve, V.D. & Ss, Raskar & Ss, Khairnar & Jh, Bagwan & Vm, Khade. (2018). Genetic variability parameters and correlation study in elite genotypes of bread wheat (*Triticumaestivum*L.). *Journal of Pharmacognosy and Phytochemistry*. 7. 3118-3123.

Comment [A16]: ????

Gowda, D. & Singh, G. & Singh, Anju. (2011). Relationship between canopy temperature depression, membrane stability, relative water content and grain yield in bread wheat (*Triticumaestivum*) under heat-stress environments. *Indian Journal of Agricultural Sciences*. 81. 197-202.

Comment [A17]: ?????

Grafius, J.E., (1959) Genetic and environmental relationship of components of yield, maturity and height in F₂-F₃ soybean populations. *Iowa State Coll. J. Sci.*, 30: 373-374.

Griffing, B., and Lindstorm, E.W., (1954) A study of the combining ability of cron hybrids having varied proportion of corn belt and non-corn belt germplasm. *Agron. J.*, 46: 545-552.

Kumar Y, LambdaR.A. S, BalbirSingh, VinodKumar, (2014). Genetic variability, correlation and Path analysis in wheat varieties under late sown condition. *Annals of Agri Bio Research*.vol.19 no 4 pp 724-727.

Kumar, A., A. Sirohi and S. Kumar. (2012). Studies of selection parameter in common bread wheat (*Triticumaestivum* L.). *Int. J. Eng. Sci. Res.* 2(2): 90-94.

Comment [A18]: ???

Kumar, A., Verma, R.S. and Samdarshi, S.B., (2000). Correlation studies on yield and yield attributes of wheat (*Triticumaestivum*). *Gujarat Agric. Univ. Res. J.* 25 (8): 5-8.

Comment [A19]: ???

Kumar, Anuj& Gaurav, Shailendra& Sharma, Priyanka & Singh, Tejbir& Chand, Pooran. (2017). Analysis of variability, heritability and genetic advance for yield and yield related trait in wheat (*Triticumaestivum*L.) genotypes.

Comment [A20]: ????

Kumar, D. and S.A. Kerkhi. (2015). Genetic variability, heritability and genetic advance for yield component and quality traits in spring wheat (*Triticumaestivum* L.). *Bios can.* 10(4): 2125-2129.

Mostafa Khodadadi, Mohammad Hossein Fotokian, Mohammad Miransa (2011) Genetic diversity of wheat (*Triticumaestivum*L.) genotypes based on cluster and principal component analyses for breeding strategies *Australian journal of crop science* 5(1):17-2

Comment [A21]: ???

MS Rahman, MS Hossain, MK Akbar, MS Islam and L Ali (2015). Genetic Divergence in Spring Wheat Genotypes (*Triticumaestivum*L.), *Eco-friendly Agril. J.* 8(01): 01-03.

Comment [A22]: ????

MS Rahman, MS Hossain, MS Islam, JF Soma and L Ali (2015) Genetic Variability Correlation and Path Analysis for Some Quantitative Traits in Wheat, *Eco-friendly Agril.J.* 7(12):158-162.

MS Rahman, MS Hossain, MS Islam, JF Shoma and L Ali (2015). Estimation of Genetic Parameters, Character Association and Path Analysis in Wheat, Eco-friendly Agril. J. 7(12): 168-171.

MS Rahman, MS Hossain, MS Islam, JF Soma, and L Ali (2014) Genetic variability correlation and path analysis for some quantitative traits in wheat *Eco-friendly Agril.J. 7(12):158-162.*

Mudra Khare, N.R. Rangare and Ravi P. Singh (2015). Evaluation of genetic diversity in Mexican wheat (*Triticumaestivum*L.) genotypes for qualitative and quantitative traits, International Journal of Plant Protection Volume 8| Issue 1 | April, 2015 | 77-80.

Comment [A23]: ????

MuezMehari, SolmonFantaw, HaddisYirga and AdhienaMesele (2015). Genetic Divergence Study of Durum Wheat (*Triticumdurum*Desf) Genotypes Grown in Tigray, Ethiopia. Science Alert,*International Journal of Plant Breeding and Genetics*, 9: 269-274.

Comment [A24]: ????

Muhammad Ali Raza, Hafiz Muhammad Ahmad, ZahidAkram and Qurban Ali 3 (2015). Evaluation of Wheat (*Triticumaestivum*L.) Genotypes for Morphological Traits Under Rainfed Conditions, Academia Arena 2015;7(9).

Muhammad M., Malik A. R., Shah J., Zakiullah, Adnan A. and Ghazanfarullah., (2011). Genetic variability and correlation analysis of bread wheat (*Triticumaestivum*L.). *Pak. J. Bot.* 43(6): 2717-2720.

Comment [A25]: ????

Muhammad, K. and Ihsan, K. (2004). Heritability, correlation and path-coefficient analysis for some metric traits in wheat. *International Jounral of Agric. and Biology*, Pakistan. 6 (1): 138-142.

Murty, B.R. and Arunachalam, V., (1966). The nature and divergence in relation to breeding system in some crop plants. *Indian J. Genet.* 26: 188-198.

Navin Kumar, ShaileshMarkar, Vijay Kumar, (2013). Studies on heritability and genetic advance estimates in timely sown bread wheat (*Triticumaestivum*L.). *Biosci. Disc.*, 5(1):64-69.

Comment [A26]: ????

Nimbalkar, C.A., Navale, P.A. and Biradar, A.B., (2002). Generalized D² and genetic diversity in wheat. *Journal of Maharashtra Agricultural Universities*. 27 (1): 43-45.

Nukasani, V., Potdukhe, N.R., Bharad, S., Deshmukh, S. and Shinde, S.M. (2013). Genetic variability, correlation and path analysis in wheat. *J. Wheat Res*, 5(2): 48-51.

Nuttonson, M.Y., (1955). Wheat climatic relationship and use of phenology in ascertaining the thermal and photo-thermal requirements of wheat. Washington DC, *American Institute of Crop Ecology*.

Panchen A. L. (1992). Classification, evolution and the nature of biology. *Cambridge Univ. Press*, Cambridge, England.

Paul K, islam A, Hasan J, chowhury H, Chowhury A (2006). Genetic variation of some morpho-physiological characters in wheat (*Triticumaestivum*L.). *Journal of Sub-Tropical Agricultural Research and Development*, vol 4 no 4 pp 192-196.

Comment [A27]: ???

Paul, A. K., Islam, M. A., Hasan, M. J., Chaudhary, M. M. H. and Chaudhary, A.Z.M.K.A (2006). Genetic variation of some morpho-physiological characters in *Triticum durum* wheat. *International J. of Sustainable Agricultural Technology*. 2 (8): 11-14

Perrier, X., Flori, A., Bonnot, F. (2003). Data analysis methods. In: Hamon, P., Seguin, M., Perrier, X., Glaszmann, J. C. Ed., *Genetic diversity of cultivated tropical plants*. Enfield, Science Publishers. Montpellier. pp 43 - 76.

Rajendra Kumar, Brij Kumar Prasad, Muneendra Kumar Singh, Gyanendra Singh and Ajay Verma (2015). Genetic divergence analysis for morpho-physiological traits, under timely and late sown condition in bread wheat (*Triticumaestivum* L.), *Journal of Wheat Research* 7(1):27-30.

Comment [A28]: ?

Rajshree and Singh, S.K. (2018). Assessment of genetic diversity in promising bread wheat (*Triticumaestivum*L.) genotypes. *International Journal of Current Microbiology and Applied Sciences*, 7(3): 676-684.

Comment [A29]: ???

Ranjana, Suresh Kumar, (2013). Study of genetic variability and heritability over extended dates of sowing in bread wheat (*Triticumaestivum*L.). *Research in Plant Biology* vol. 3 no 1 pp 33-36.

Comment [A30]: ????

Rao, C.R. (1952). The utilization of multiple measurement in problems of biological classification. *J. Roy. Stat. Soc.*, 10: 159-203.

Raza, M., Farooq, M., Muhammad, S. and Sheikh, U.A.A. (2015). Efficacy of different commercially available weedicides on wheat *Triticumaestivum* in Rawalpindi Pakistan. *International Journal of Agronomy and Agricultural Research*, 7(2): 205-209.

Comment [A31]: ???

Sharma, V. and Pawar, I.S. (2007) Genetic divergence for yield, its components and quality traits in bread wheat. *Haryan agric. Univ. J. Res*, 37: 27-31.

Shatha A. Yousif, Hatem Jasim, Ali R. Abas, Dheya P. Yousef (2015). Some Yield Parameters of Wheat Genotypes. *International Journal of Biological, Biomolecular, Agricultural, Food and Biotechnological Engineering* Vol:9, No:3.

Sherif, H0.S., Hosary. E.L., Behit, M.M., Moustafa, M.A., Maghraby, M.A., (2005). Correlation and Path coefficient analysis of yield characters in bread wheat (*T. aestivum*L.). *Annals of Agricultural Science, Moshtohor*. 43 (4): 1677-1687.

Sidharthan, B. and Malik, S.K., (2007). Variability studies in wheat (*T. aestivum* L.). *International J. of Agric. Science*, 3 (1): 142-144.

Singh Praveen and Salgotra S.K (2014)Genetic divergence study in improved bread wheat varieties (*Triticumaestivum*) *African journal of agriculture research* Vol.9(4), pp. 507-512.

Comment [A32]: ?????

Singh, B. N, Vishwakarma, S. R and Singh, V. K (2010), character association and path analysis in elite lines of wheat (*Triticumaestivum*L.) *Plant Archives* 10(2) 845-847.

Comment [A33]: ???

Singh, S.K., Singh, B.N., Singh, P.K. and Sharma, C.L., (2006). Genetic divergence of exotic germplasm lines in wheat (*T. aestivum* L.). *Indian J. Plant Genet. Resources*. 19 (2): 218-220.

- Singh, S.P., and Diwivedi, V.K., (2005).** Genetic divergence in wheat (*T. aestivum* L.). *Agricultural Science Digest*. 25 (3): 201-203.
- Vavilov, N.I., (1926).** Studies on the origin of cultivated plants. *Bulatin of Applied Botany*. Vol. XVI: 2.
- Verma, A.K., Singh, P.K., Vishwakarma, S.R. and Tripathi, R.M., (2006).** Genetic divergence in wheat (*T. aestivum* L.). *Farm Science Journal*. 15 (1): 32-34.
- Verma, P.N., Singh, B.N. and Yadav, R.K. (2013)** Genetic variability and divergence analysis of yield and its contributing traits under sodic soil condition in wheat (*T. aestivum* L.). *International Journal of Agricultural Sciences*, 3(2): 395-399.
- Weinhues, F., (1960).** Botany and breeding of wheat. In: *Progressive Wheat Production*. Centre an Etude delaAzote, Gueneva.
- Wright, S., (1921).** Correlation and causation. *J. Agric. Res.* 20: 557.
- Yifru T., Hammer K., Huang X. Q. and Roder M. S. (2006).** Regional patterns of microsatellite diversity in Ethiopian tetraploid wheat accessions. *Plant Breeding* 125: 125-130.
- Yousaf A.A., Javed Akhter Monneveux B.M., Zahid Lateef, P., (2008).**Genetic variability, association and diversity studies in wheat (*Triticumaestivum*L.emThell.) germplasm. *Pakistan Journal of Botany*. 40 (5): 2087-2097.
- Zaeifizadeh, Khayatnezhad, M., Ghasemi, M., Azimi, M., Vahabzadeh, J.M., (2011).**Path analysis of yield and yield components in synthetic bread wheat (*Triticumaestivum* L.) genotypes. *Advances in Environmental Biology*. 5 (1): 98-103. 20.
- Zecevic, V., Boskovic, J., Dimitrijevic, M., and Petrovic, S., (2010).**Genetic and phenotypic variability of yield components in wheat (*Triticumaestivum*L.em. Thell.).*Bulgarian Journal of Agricultural Science*. 16 (4): 422-428

UNDER PEER REVIEW